
 

                                   

v1 2015 

AGENDA  
 

Meeting London Assembly (Plenary) 

Date Wednesday 8 June 2016 

Time 10.00 am 

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 
Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at  
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly 
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 

A meeting of the Assembly will be held to deal with the business listed below. 
 
Tony Arbour AM 
Chairman of the London Assembly 

Jennette Arnold OBE AM 
Deputy Chair 

 Tuesday 31 May 2016 
 
 
Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: John Barry, Principal Committee Manager; Telephone: 020 7983 4425; Email: 
john.barry@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458. 
 
For media enquiries please contact: Alison Bell; Telephone: 020 7983 5769;  
Email: alison.bell@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458.  If you have any questions about individual items 
please contact the author whose details are at the end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 
 

Proper Officer: Mark Roberts, Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
mailto:alison.bell@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 
 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
London Assembly (Plenary)  
Wednesday 8 June 2016 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chairman's Announcements  
 
 To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chairman.  

 
 

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 The Assembly is recommended to: 

 
(a) Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests;  
 
(b)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 
Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and  

 
(c)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 
which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 
of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 
Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 
action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 

 
 

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 38) 

 
 The Assembly is recommended to confirm the minutes of the London Assembly 

Annual Meeting held on 13 May 2016 to be signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record.  
 
 

4 Question and Answer Session - Transport for London (Pages 39 - 50) 

 
 Part A: 

 

The Assembly will put questions to the Mayor of London and the Commissioner for Transport 

on the policies and work of Transport for London. 

 

Part B: 

 

Motion submitted in the name of the Chairman: 

 

“That the Assembly notes the answers to the questions asked.”  
 
 



 

4 
 

5 Petitions (Pages 51 - 54) 

 
 Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat   

Contact: John Barry, john.barry@london.gov.uk, tel: 020 7983 4425 

 

The Assembly is recommended to note the petitions listed in the report and to 

decide whether to refer the petitions, and if so where to, and to seek a response to 

the points raised. 
 
 

6 Motions (Pages 55 - 58) 

 
 Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat   

Contact: John Barry, john.barry@london.gov.uk, tel: 020 7983 4425 
 

The Assembly is asked to consider the motions submitted by Assembly Members. 
 
 

7 Future Plenary Meeting  
 
 London Assembly (Plenary) Meeting – 6 July 2016 

 

It is proposed that the Assembly uses the 6 July 2016 Plenary meeting principally to hold a 

question and answer session with the Mayor of London, in his capacity as occupant of the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe QPM, the Commissioner 

of Police of the Metropolis, on policing in London. 

 

Recommendation: 

  

That the Assembly agrees to use the 6 July 2016 Plenary meeting principally to hold 

a question and answer session with the Mayor of London, and Sir Bernard Hogan-

Howe QPM, Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis, on policing in London. 
 
 

8 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 The next scheduled meeting of the London Assembly will be the Mayor’s Question Time 

meeting which will take place at 10.00am on Wednesday 22 June 2016 in the Chamber, City 

Hall.  
 
 

9 Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent  
 
 
 

 

mailto:john.barry@london.gov.uk
mailto:john.barry@london.gov.uk


 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v1/2016 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: London Assembly (Plenary)  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 8 June 2016 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

 

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Richmond 

Jennette Arnold OBE AM Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Chairman of LFEPA; Chairman of the London Local 
Resilience Forum; Member, LB Bexley 

Kemi Badenoch AM  

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Member, LFEPA; Congress of Local and Regional 
Authorities (Council of Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM Member, LFEPA 

Unmesh Desai AM Member, LB Newham 

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM Member, LFEPA 

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM Member, LB Lambeth 

Nicky Gavron AM  

David Kurten AM  

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Member, LB Redbridge 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Member, LFEPA 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough; LFEPA - London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority] 
 
3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: John Barry, Principal Committee Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 

E-mail: john.barry@london.gov.uk  

 

Page 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality
mailto:john.barry@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                      

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

MINUTES  
Meeting: London Assembly (Plenary) 
Date: Friday 13 May 2016 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 

Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 
Copies of the minutes may be found at: http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-
assembly/whole-assembly 
 
 
Present: 
 
Tony Arbour AM (Chairman) 

Jennette Arnold OBE AM (Deputy Chair) 

Gareth Bacon AM 

Kemi Badenoch AM 

Shaun Bailey AM 

Sian Berry AM 

Andrew Boff AM 

Leonie Cooper AM 

Tom Copley AM 

Unmesh Desai AM 

Tony Devenish AM 

Andrew Dismore AM 

Len Duvall AM 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM 

Nicky Gavron AM 

David Kurten AM 

Joanne McCartney AM 

Steve O'Connell AM 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 

Keith Prince AM 

Caroline Russell AM 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM 

Navin Shah AM 

Fiona Twycross AM 

Peter Whittle AM 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly


Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
2 

 

 
 

1   Election of Chair and Deputy Chair of the London Assembly (Item 1) 

 

1.1 Jennette Arnold OBE AM delivered an address on her term as Chair of the London Assembly, 

referring to the number of reports produced by the London Assembly and in particular the 

high-profile work of the Transport Committee on scrutinising Transport for London (TfL), the 

work of the GLA Oversight Committee on TfL’s Garden Bridge design procurement, the 

recommendations of the Education Panel to the Mayor, and the work of the Police and Crime 

Committee on crime on public transport. She also expressed a hope that the work of the Chair 

with the Holocaust Educational Trust would be continued.   

 

1.2 The Head of Paid Service then conducted the election for the position of Chair of the London 

Assembly for the 2016/17 year. 

 

1.3 It was proposed by Gareth Bacon AM and seconded by Len Duvall AM that Tony Arbour AM 

be appointed Chair of the London Assembly for the 2016/17 year. Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 

spoke in support of the nomination. 

 

1.4 There being one nomination before the Assembly, it was: 

 

1.5 Resolved: 

 

That Tony Arbour AM be appointed Chair of the London Assembly until the next 

Annual Meeting of the Assembly in May 2017. 

 

[Tony Arbour AM in the Chair] 

 

1.6 The Chairman addressed the Assembly and expressed his view that the Assembly had become 

a recognised and important established political institution in the eyes of Londoners. He 

emphasised how the work of the Assembly necessitated cross-party working in order to 

operate in the interests of London and Londoners. The Chairman also stressed his desire for 

London to be granted greater devolved responsibilities.  

 

1.7 The Chairman then presided over the election for the office of Deputy Chair of the London 

Assembly. 

 

1.8 It was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by Gareth Bacon AM that Jennette 

Arnold OBE AM be appointed Deputy Chair of the London Assembly for the 2016/17 year. 

Sian Berry AM, Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM and Len Duvall AM spoke in support of the 

nomination. 

 

 

 

Page 6



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
3 

 

1.9 There being one nomination before the Assembly, it was: 

 

Resolved: 

 

That Jennette Arnold OBE AM be appointed Deputy Chair of the London Assembly 

until the next Annual Meeting of the Assembly in May 2017. 
 
 

2   Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 2) 

 

2.1 There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

3   Declarations of Interests (Item 3) 

 

3.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.  

 

3.2 Resolved: 

 

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at Item 3, 

be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests. 
 
 

4   Results of 2016 Greater London Authority Elections (Item 4) 

 

4.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

 

4.2 Resolved:  

 

That the report be noted. 
 
 

5   Assembly Party Groups and Members (Item 5) 

 

5.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

 

5.2 Resolved:  

 

That the formation of party Groups from within the overall membership of the 

London Assembly be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
4 

 

6   Deputy Mayors (Item 6) 

 

6.1 Resolved: 

 

That the appointment of Joanne McCartney AM to the position of statutory Deputy 

Mayor be noted. 

 

6.2 In accordance with Standing Order 2.2D, the Chairman agreed to take the remaining items in a 

different order than that set out on the agenda.  
 
 

7   Nominations to Outside Bodies (Item 11) 

 

7.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

7.2 Len Duvall AM proposed and Fiona Twycross AM seconded the following nominations to the 

outside bodies indicated: 

 Advisory Board for the Centre for Public Scrutiny – Tony Arbour AM; 

 Heathrow Airport Consultative Committee – Dr Onkar Sahota AM; and 

 London Sustainable Development Commission – Nicky Gavron AM. 

 

7.3 Resolved: 

 

That the following Members be nominated to the outside bodies indicated for the 

period up until the next ordinary GLA elections: 

 Advisory Board for the Centre for Public Scrutiny – Tony Arbour AM; 

 Heathrow Airport Consultative Committee – Dr Onkar Sahota AM; and 

 London Sustainable Development Commission – Nicky Gavron AM. 
 
 

8   GLA Corporate Governance Framework (Item 12) 

 
8.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 
8.2 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the Scheme of Delegation of Functions of the London Assembly, as set 

out at Appendix 1 of the report, be noted;  

 

(b) That the Mayoral Scheme of Delegation, as set out at Appendix 2 or the 

report, be noted; and 

 

Page 8



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
5 

 

(c) That the standing delegation of authority to the Executive Director of 

Secretariat to make minor and consequential changes, arising from relevant 

decisions of the London Assembly and/or its committees, to the Scheme of 

Delegation of Functions of the London Assembly and the Assembly’s Decision 

Making Framework, be reconfirmed. 
 
 

9   Future Plenary Meeting (Item 13) 

 

9.1 Resolved: 

 

That the Assembly, under section 61 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, 

requires the attendance of the Chairman and the Commissioner of Transport for 

London at the 8 June 2016 London Assembly (Plenary) meeting, for which notice will 

be given in accordance with section 62 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 in 

due course, to answer questions in relation to the policies and work of Transport for 

London. 
 
 

10   Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority (Item 14) 

 

10.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

10.2 Resolved: 

 

That the recent action taken by the Chair of the London Assembly for the 2015/16 

Assembly Year, Jennette Arnold OBE AM, under delegated authority, namely not to 

hold a confirmation hearing in respect of the proposed appointment of Councillor 

Daniel Moylan as Interim Deputy Chairman of Transport for London for the period 

up until 26 June 2016, be noted. 
 
 

11   Minutes (Item 15) 

 

11.1 Resolved: 

 

That the minutes of London Assembly meetings held on 2 March 2016 (Plenary) and 

16 March 2016 (Mayor’s Question Time) be signed by the Chair as correct records. 
 
 

12   Date of Next Meeting (Item 16) 

 
12.1 The next meeting of the London Assembly would be the Mayor’s Question Time meeting 

which would take place at 10.00am on Wednesday 25 May 2016 in the Chamber, City Hall. 
 

Page 9



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
6 

 

 

13   Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent (Item 17) 

 

13.1 The Chairman explained that he had received a request to debate an urgent motion and that, 

in accordance with the provisions of Section 100(B)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 

amended), he had agreed to admit that motion to the agenda for the meeting as an item of 

urgent business in order to allow its consideration at the earliest opportunity, noting also that 

the matter which the motion related to had not arisen until after the agenda for the meeting 

had been published. 

 

13.2 In accordance with Standing Order 3.12 and following an oral statement from the proposer of 

the motion as to why the Assembly should agree to consider it, by general consensus the 

Assembly unanimously agreed to consider the urgent motion. 

 

13.3 Gareth Bacon AM moved and Len Duvall AM seconded the urgent motion, namely: 

 

“This Assembly wishes to express its disappointment in the way London Elects and the London 

Borough of Barnet Returning Officer conducted the Mayoral and London Assembly elections 

and proposes the setting up of a working group to examine what happened, as has always 

happened in previous elections, alongside assessing the way in which the elections were 

carried out across London. 

  

In the London Borough of Barnet the supplementary register, rather than the full register, was 

supplied to all 155 polling stations. By the time the error was spotted and remedial action 

taken, estimates suggest a significant number of voters were disenfranchised.  

  

The Mayoral and London Assembly elections were overseen by London Elects, and the 

counting of ballots on Friday 6th May 2016 was delayed by nearly seven hours following a 

computer system failure. The full London Assembly results were not announced until shortly 

before midnight whilst the Mayoral ballot was only formally read in the early hours of Saturday 

7th May 2016. 

 

A working group should be formed and should include in its investigations the London 

Borough of Barnet’s and London Elects’ handling of the Mayoral and London Assembly 

elections, and examine what changes should be made to prevent such failings from 

reoccurring. The working group should also assess how the Mayoral and London Assembly 

elections were conducted across the capital with the aim of encouraging best practice.  

 

This investigation should be completed at the earliest opportunity, with the Barnet part of the 

investigation concluding before the European Referendum so the Council and the Electoral 

Commission, and with London Elects if necessary, have time to make any changes in Barnet to 

ensure that this does not happen again. The working group should report to the London 

Assembly’s Oversight Committee.” 

Page 10



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
7 

 

 

13.4 Upon being put to the vote, the urgent motion in the name of Gareth Bacon AM, namely: 

 

“This Assembly wishes to express its disappointment in the way London Elects and 

the London Borough of Barnet Returning Officer conducted the Mayoral and London 

Assembly elections and proposes the setting up of a working group to examine what 

happened, as has always happened in previous elections, alongside assessing the 

way in which the elections were carried out across London. 

  

In the London Borough of Barnet the supplementary register, rather than the full 

register, was supplied to all 155 polling stations. By the time the error was spotted 

and remedial action taken, estimates suggest a significant number of voters were 

disenfranchised.  

  

The Mayoral and London Assembly elections were overseen by London Elects, and 

the counting of ballots on Friday 6th May 2016 was delayed by nearly seven hours 

following a computer system failure. The full London Assembly results were not 

announced until shortly before midnight whilst the Mayoral ballot was only formally 

read in the early hours of Saturday 7th May 2016. 

 

A working group should be formed and should include in its investigations the 

London Borough of Barnet’s and London Elects’ handling of the Mayoral and London 

Assembly elections, and examine what changes should be made to prevent such 

failings from reoccurring. The working group should also assess how the Mayoral 

and London Assembly elections were conducted across the capital with the aim of 

encouraging best practice.  

 

This investigation should be completed at the earliest opportunity, with the Barnet 

part of the investigation concluding before the European Referendum so the Council 

and the Electoral Commission, and with London Elects if necessary, have time to 

make any changes in Barnet to ensure that this does not happen again. The working 

group should report to the London Assembly’s Oversight Committee.” 

 

was agreed unanimously. 

 

13.5 The Chairman explained that he had received a request to debate a second urgent motion and 

that, in accordance with the provisions of Section 100(B)(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 (as amended), he had agreed to admit that motion to the agenda for the meeting as an 

item of urgent business in order to allow its consideration at the earliest opportunity, noting 

also that the matter which the motion related to had not arisen until after the agenda for the 

meeting had been published. 

 

Page 11



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
8 

 

13.6 In accordance with Standing Order 3.12 and following an oral statement from the proposer of 

the motion as to why the Assembly should agree to consider it, by general consensus the 

Assembly agreed to consider the urgent motion. 

 

13.7 Andrew Dismore AM moved and Fiona Twycross AM seconded the urgent motion, namely: 

 

“Following the electoral fiasco during the Mayoral and London Assembly elections, this 

Assembly has significant doubts about the ability of London Borough of Barnet to manage and 

administer elections. 

 

In Barnet, the supplementary register, rather than the full register, was supplied to polling 

stations. By the time the error was spotted and remedial action taken, a significant number of   

voters were disenfranchised, though many were able to return to vote later.  Many postal 

votes did not arrive on time, or were not received at all. Many poll cards were not received in 

time or at all.  The election hotline was unavailable for most of the day.  

  

The consequences of these problems, though, pale into insignificance when compared to the 

state of the electoral register in Barnet, which is worryingly deficient. 

 

As a consequence of the significant issues raised, this Assembly has no confidence that Barnet 

could run a whelk stall let alone sort out the register and rectify these errors and  

inefficiencies by the time of the EU Referendum; especially as the details of their own inquiry 

have  not even been announced yet.  

 

The Assembly therefore calls on London Elects and the Electoral Commission to intervene 

actively to take over the running of Barnet’s election administration for the Referendum and 

to conduct an urgent review of the state and accuracy of Barnet’s electoral register; and also 

proposes that a London local authority with a record of excellent electoral administration, such 

as Camden, should take over the management of the European Union Referendum in the 

London Borough of Barnet.” 

 

13.8 Upon being put to the vote, the urgent motion in the name of Andrew Dismore AM, namely: 

 

“Following the electoral fiasco during the Mayoral and London Assembly elections, 

this Assembly has significant doubts about the ability of London Borough of Barnet 

to manage and administer elections. 

 

In Barnet, the supplementary register, rather than the full register, was supplied to 

polling stations. By the time the error was spotted and remedial action taken, a 

significant number of   voters were disenfranchised, though many were able to 

return to vote later.  Many postal votes did not arrive on time, or were not received 

at all. Many poll cards were not received in time or at all.  The election hotline was 

unavailable for most of the day.  

Page 12



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
9 

 

  

The consequences of these problems, though, pale into insignificance when 

compared to the state of the electoral register in Barnet, which is worryingly 

deficient. 

 

As a consequence of the significant issues raised, this Assembly has no confidence 

that Barnet could run a whelk stall let alone sort out the register and rectify these 

errors and  inefficiencies by the time of the EU Referendum; especially as the details 

of their own inquiry have  not even been announced yet.  

 

The Assembly therefore calls on London Elects and the Electoral Commission to 

intervene actively to take over the running of Barnet’s election administration for 

the Referendum and to conduct an urgent review of the state and accuracy of 

Barnet’s electoral register; and also proposes that a London local authority with a 

record of excellent electoral administration, such as Camden, should take over the 

management of the European Union Referendum in the London Borough of Barnet.” 

 

was agreed (by 15 votes for and 10 votes against). 
 
 

14   Establishment of Assembly Committees and Bodies for 2016/17  

(Item 7) 

 

14.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.  

 

14.2 A list of proposed Assembly committees and other bodies for establishment for the 2016/17 

year, together with the proposed terms of reference, membership and nominations for Chair 

and Deputy Chair for each body was formally tabled at the meeting and is attached to these 

minutes as Appendix 1.  

 

14.3 Resolved:  

 

(a) That, in accordance with the provisions of Section 17 of the Local Government 

and Housing Act 1989, the proportionality rules be disapplied where 

committee membership is not politically proportional in respect of the overall 

membership of the Assembly; 

 

 (agreed unanimously) 

 

(b) That it be agreed to establish the committees and other bodies set out at 

tabled Appendix 1 as ordinary committees for the period until the next 

Annual Meeting of the Assembly in May 2017, and that the size, constitution, 

terms of reference, membership, substitute Members, Chairs and Deputy 

Chairs for each of those bodies be approved; 

Page 13



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
10 

 

 

(c) That the existing standing delegation to the Chair of the Assembly in respect 

of powers (conferred by Schedule 4A of the Greater London Authority Act 

1999 as amended) to decide to hold a confirmation hearing and to decide 

whether to request the candidate to produce any documents be confirmed; 

and that appointment of the Chair be delegated to the Committee for election 

at each meeting; and 

 

(d) That the previous decisions of the then Business Management and 

Appointments Committee in respect of committee meetings and work 

programmes, as set out at paragraphs 4.38 and 4.39 of Agenda Item 7 be 

confirmed. 
 
 

15   Appointment of Members to Committees (Item 8) 

 

15.1 The Assembly considered the business presented under items 7, 8 and 9 on the agenda 

collectively under Item 7. 
 
 

16   Election of Committee Chairs and Deputy Chairs (Item 9) 

 

16.1 The Assembly considered the business presented under items 7, 8 and 9 on the agenda 

collectively under Item 7. 
 
 

17   Dates of Assembly and Committee Meetings in 2016/17 (Item 10) 

 

17.1 The Assembly received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.  

 

17.2 The programme of Assembly and committee meetings for the 2016/17 Assembly Year was 

formally tabled at the meeting and is attached to these minutes as Appendix 2. 

 

17.3 Resolved: 

 

That the programme of Assembly and committee meetings for the 2016/17 

Assembly Year and allocated meeting slots to the committees and bodies established 

under Item 7 of the agenda be agreed. 
 
 

18   Close of Meeting  

 

18.1 The meeting finished at 11.10am. 
 
 

Page 14



Greater London Authority 
London Assembly (Plenary) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 

 
11 

 

 
 
 
 
    

Chairman  Date 
 
Contact Officers: John Barry 

Principal Committee Manager 
GLA Secretariat, City Hall 
The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 
Email: john.barry@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Appendix 1 

 

London Assembly Annual Meeting - 13 May 2016 

Agenda Items 7, 8 and 9 

 

London Assembly – Membership of Committees / Bodies 

 and Terms of Reference 2016/17 

 
The attached grid sets out the proposed structure of and terms of reference for London 
Assembly committees and other bodies for the 2016/17 Assembly Year put forward following 
informal discussions between the Assembly’s party Groups, and nominations from Groups to 
those bodies, including nominations for Chair and Deputy Chair of each committee. 
  
The proposed allocation of seats has been drawn up on the basis that the Assembly will, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 17 of the Local Government and Housing Act, 
unanimously agree to disapply the proportionality rules where committee membership is not 
politically proportional in respect of the overall membership of the Assembly. 
 

 

Number of seats per Group  
 

 

Assembly 
Seats  

 Committee seats 
overall 

Labour Group   12 48%  41 (41.76) 

Conservative Group  8 32%  28 (27.84) 

Green Group  2 8%  8 (6.95) 

UKIP Group  2 8%  7 (6.95) 

Ungrouped Member 1 4%  3 (3.48)  
 

    

Committee Structure:    

2x10 Member committees    

2x9 Member committees    

3x7 Member committee    

1x6 Member committees    

3x5 Member committees    

1x4 Member committee    

1x3 Member committee    

Total – 87 seats 
  

  

Page 17



London Assembly – Membership of Committees / Bodies and  

Terms of Reference 2016/17 

 

Audit Panel 

 

Total number of seats: 4                              Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

2 Labour (Labour) Tom Copley 

1 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Leonie Cooper 

1 UKIP (Conservative) Keith Prince AM (Deputy Chair) 

 UKIP) Peter Whittle AM (Chair) 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Jennette Arnold OBE AM,  Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew Dismore AM, Len 
Duvall AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Onkar Sahota AM,  
Navin Shah AM, Fiona Twycross AM. 

For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, Shaun 
Bailey AM, Andrew Boff AM, Tony Devenish AM and Steve O’Connell AM.  

For UKIP Group  – David Kurten AM 
 

Terms of Reference  

1. The Audit Panel will be concerned with ensuring the security of and monitoring of 
financial systems, ensuring that there is an anti-fraud culture, and promoting probity and 
good practice within the core GLA. 
 

2. To liaise with the external auditors over their annual programme and, with the Mayor as 
appropriate, to approve the annual internal audit programme. 
 

3. To deal as appropriate with matters raised by the external auditors’ management letters 
and reports and, where a report is made in respect of the GLA, to make recommendations 
to the Assembly at the meeting at which the report is to be formally considered in the 
presence of the Mayor in accordance with Schedule 8 in the 1999 Act. 
 

4. To deal as appropriate with matters arising from the internal auditors’ reports and to 
comment to the Mayor on matters relevant to his/her responsibilities. 
 

5. To review the GLA’s Risk Management Policy and comment to the Mayor as appropriate. 
 

 
  

Page 18



Budget and Performance Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
7 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

3 Labour (Labour) Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair) 

2 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Leonie Cooper AM 

1 Green Party (Labour) Unmesh Desai AM 

1 Ungrouped Member (Conservative) Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman) 

 (Conservative) Keith Prince AM 

 (Green Party) Sian Berry AM 

 (Ungrouped 
Member) 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 

   

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Jennette Arnold OBE AM, Tom Copley AM, Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew 
Dismore AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Onkar Sahota 
AM,  Navin Shah AM, Fiona Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, Shaun Bailey AM, 
Andrew Boff AM, Tony Devenish AM and Steve O’Connell AM. 
 
For Green Party Group – Caroline Russell AM 
 

Terms of Reference 

1. To examine at each stage of the consultation process the Mayor’s budget proposals for 
the next financial year and to report to the Assembly thereon as necessary. 
 

2. To report to the Assembly on the Mayor’s consultation budget at the conclusion of the 
consultation process. 
 

3. To undertake the duties of the Assembly referred to in paragraph 2(2) and paragraph 
3(2)(b) of Schedule 6 to the GLA Act 1999; namely, to receive and consider the Mayor’s 
consultation prior to the determination of the draft component budget for the Authority 
and to receive and consider the Mayor’s consultation prior to the final determination of 
the draft consolidated GLA budget. 
 

4. To examine, monitor and report to the Assembly from time to time on matters relating to 
the budgets and performance of the Greater London Authority and the Functional 
Bodies. 
 

5. To consider budgetary and performance matters on request from another standing 
committee and report its opinion to that standing committee. 
 

6. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of 
persons in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the United 
Kingdom; climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 
 

Page 19



7. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when within 
its terms of reference. 
 

8. To refer any issues to the Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee which fall within the 
Committee’s remit. 
 

9. To examine, monitor and report to the Assembly from time to time on Mayoral 
directions, approvals and decisions, insofar as they relate to the budgets and 
performance of the GLA and the Functional Bodies. 
 

 
 

 

  

Page 20



Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
3 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

2 Labour (Labour) Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair) 

1 Conservative (Labour) Onkar Sahota AM 

 (Conservative) Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman) 

   

 
Substitutes:  
For Labour Group – Jennette Arnold OBE AM,  Leonie Cooper AM, Tom Copley AM, Unmesh 
Desai AM, Andrew Dismore AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney 
AM, Navin Shah AM, Fiona Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, 
Shaun Bailey AM, Andrew Boff AM, Tony Devenish AM, Steve O’Connell AM and Keith Prince 
AM. 

 

Term of Reference 

 To consider the quarterly monitoring reports provided by the GLA and its functional 
bodies as referred to it by the Budget and Performance Committee, and any other 
reports falling within the terms of reference of the Budget and Performance Committee 
which that Committee considers appropriate, and to report back its findings to the 
Budget and Performance Committee as necessary. 
 

  

Page 21



Confirmation Hearings Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
9 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

4 Labour (Labour) Len Duvall AM 

3 GLA Conservatives  (Labour) Jennette Arnold AM 

1 Green Party (Labour) Tom Copley AM 

1 UKIP (Labour) Onkar Sahota AM 

 (Conservative) Gareth Bacon AM 

 (Conservative) Andrew Boff AM (Chair) 

(Conservative) Steve O’Connell AM 

(Green Party) Caroline Russell AM 

(UKIP) Peter Whittle AM 

 
Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew Dismore AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Nicky 
Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Onkar Sahota AM, Navin Shah AM, Fiona Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, Shaun Bailey AM, Tony 
Devenish AM and Keith Prince AM. 
 
For Green Party Group – Sian Berry AM 
 
For UKIP Group – David Kurten AM 
 

Term of Reference  

1. In accordance with Section 60A and Schedule 4A of the Greater London Authority Acts 
1999 and 2007, to hold confirmation hearings and, as necessary, to make 
recommendations to the Mayor on proposed appointments. 
 

  

Page 22



Economy Committee   
 

Total number of seats: 
6 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

3 Labour (Labour) Fiona Twycross AM (Chair) 

2 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Joanne McCartney AM 

1 Green Party (Labour) Andrew Dismore AM 

 (Conservative) Kemi Badenoch AM (Deputy Chair) 

 (Conservative) Shaun Bailey AM 

 (Green) Caroline Russell AM 

 
Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group –  Jennette Arnold OBE AM,  Leonie Cooper AM and Tom Copley AM, 
Unmesh Desai AM,  Len Duvall AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Onkar Sahota 
AM  Navin Shah AM, 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Andrew Boff AM, Tony 
Devenish AM, Steve O’Connell AM and Keith Prince AM. 
 
For Green Party Group – Sian Berry AM  
 

Terms of Reference  

 
1. To examine and report from time to time on – 

 matters of importance to Greater London; and 

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor and Functional Bodies  

as they relate to economic development, wealth creation, social development, 
culture, sport and tourism in London. 

 
2. To provide lead oversight for the London Assembly of the policies, decisions and 

actions of the London Enterprise Panel. 
 
3. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when 

within its terms of reference. 
 
4. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of 

persons in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the 
United Kingdom; climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 23



Environment Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
7 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

3 Labour (Labour) Leonie Cooper AM  (Chair) 

2 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Jennette Arnold AM 

1 Green Party  (Labour) Nicky Gavron AM 

1 UKIP (Conservative) Tony Devenish AM  

 (Conservative) Shaun Bailey AM 

 (Green Party ) Caroline Russell AM (Deputy Chair) 

 (UKIP) David Kurten AM 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Tom Copley AM, Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew Dismore AM, Len Duvall AM, 
Florence Eshalomi AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Onkar Sahota AM,  Navin Shah AM, Fiona 
Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Kemi Badenoch AM,  
Andrew Boff AM, Steve O’Connell AM and Keith Prince AM. 
 
For Green Party Group – Sian Berry AM 
 
For UKIP Group –Peter Whittle AM 
 

Term of Reference 

1. To examine and report from time to time on –  

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor and the Functional Bodies 

 matters of importance to Greater London 

as they relate to the environment and sustainable development in London. 
 

2. To consider environmental matters on request from another standing committee and 
report its opinion to that standing committee. 
 

3. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of 
persons in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the United 
Kingdom; climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 
 

4. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when within 
its terms of reference. 
 

  

Page 24



GLA Oversight Committee  
 

Total number of seats: 9                              Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

4 Labour (Labour) Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair) 

3 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Tom Copley AM 

1 Green Party  (Labour) Onkar Sahota AM 

1 UKIP (Labour) Navin Shah AM 

 (Conservative) Gareth Bacon AM (Chair) 

 (Conservative) Shaun Bailey AM 

 (Conservative) Steve O’Connell AM 

 (Green Party) Sian Berry AM 

 (UKIP) Peter Whittle AM 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group –  Jennette Arnold OBE AM,  Leonie Cooper AM, Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew 
Dismore AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Fiona Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group  – Tony Arbour AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, Andrew Boff AM, Tony 
Devenish AM and Keith Prince AM. 
 
For Green Party Group – Caroline Russell AM 
 
For UKIP Group – David Kurten AM 
 

Terms of Reference  

A. 

 

Staffing 

 

1. To respond on behalf of the London Assembly to formal consultation from the Head of 
Paid Service (HoPS) concerning staff appointments and terms and conditions for 
section 67 (2) employees under the GLA Acts 1999 and 2007. 
 

2. To receive reports from the Head of Paid Service.  
 

3. Noting that it is a joint decision with the Mayor, to make recommendations to the 
London Assembly on appointments to the posts of the three statutory officers (Head of 
Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer) and on the terms and 
conditions of employment for those posts. 
 

4. Noting that it is a joint decision with the Mayor, to make recommendations to the 
London Assembly relating to any required disciplinary procedures against the 
Authority’s statutory officers in accordance with relevant procedures. 
 

5. In accordance with agreed protocols and at the request of the Head of Paid Service, to 
appoint as necessary Members to attend appointment panels as non-voting members 
for relevant staff posts.  
 

6. To make recommendations to the London Assembly on any other matter requiring a 
joint decision with the Mayor. 
 

Page 25



B. Scrutiny 

 

1. To approve all scrutiny-related Assembly expenditure and proposals for use of 
rapporteurs, in conformity with the Assembly’s decision making framework procedure.  
 

2. 
 

To scrutinise issues relating to civil contingency arrangements in London. 

3.  To scrutinise issues relating to the provision of services to the public (other than those 
falling within the remit of other committees of the Assembly) and the performance of 
utilities in London. 
 

4. To scrutinise any actions or decisions taken by the Mayor on matters relating to 
education.  

C. General 

 

1. To oversee the programming of the Assembly’s business. 
 

2. To provide a response from the Assembly on consultation in respect of electoral issues, 
arrangements for major events such as People’s Question Time and the State of 
London debate, consultation on their behalf concerning Parliamentary bills and all 
forms of secondary legislation or guidance and any other issue not falling within 
another committee or sub-committee’s subject area and terms of reference. 
 

3. To deal with and determine any question, issue or other matter not falling within the 
approved subject area and terms of reference of any other committee.   
 

4. To vary the approved subject area and terms of reference of the Assembly’s other 
committees and sub-committees, so as to include for the future an issue or other 
matter not otherwise provided for, in order to facilitate the efficient and effective 
discharge of the Assembly’s business.     
 

5. To have due regard to the decisions of the other Committees of the Assembly. 
 

6. To consider and approve a programme of Assembly receptions and events. 
 

D. Budget 

 

1. To recommend to the Mayor a budget proposal for the London Assembly for the 
following financial year. 
 

2. To allocate the Assembly’s budget and to monitor expenditure on scrutiny throughout 
the year. 
 

3. To approve, in accordance with GLA policy, all proposed Assembly-related budget 
virements in excess of £25,000 (noting that virements in excess of £50,000 will be 
notified to the Mayor once a decision is taken) and to approve all proposed virements 
between staff and non-staff budgets within the overall Secretariat budget (in 
consultation with the Mayor for relevant proposed virements in excess of £50,000). 
 

 

Page 26



Health Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
5 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

3 Labour (Labour) Onkar Sahota AM (Chair) 

2 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Jennette Arnold AM  

 (Labour) Florence Eshalomi AM 

 (Conservative) Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chair) 

 (Conservative) Andrew Boff AM 

   

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group –  Leonie Cooper AM, Tom Copley AM, Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew Dismore 
AM, Len Duvall AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney AM,  Navin Shah AM, Fiona 
Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, Tony 
Devenish AM, Steve O’Connell AM and Keith Prince AM. 
 

Term of Reference 

1. To examine and report from time to time on –  

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor and the Functional Bodies 

 matters of importance to Greater London 

as they relate to the promotion of health in London. 
 

2. To consider health matters on request from another standing committee and report its 
opinion to that standing committee.  
 

3. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of 
persons in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the United 
Kingdom; climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 
 

4. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when within 
its terms of reference. 
 

 
  

Page 27



Housing Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
7 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

3 Labour (Labour) Tom Copley AM (Deputy Chair) 

2 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Leonie Cooper AM 

1 Green Party  (Labour) Nicky Gavron AM  

1 UKIP (Conservative) Andrew Boff AM (Chair) 

 (Conservative) Tony Devenish AM 

 (Green Party ) Sian Berry AM 

 (UKIP) David Kurten AM 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group –  Jennette Arnold OBE AM,  Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew Dismore AM, Len 
Duvall AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Onkar Sahota AM,  Navin Shah 
AM, Fiona Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, 
Shaun Bailey AM, Steve O’Connell AM and Keith Prince AM. 
 
For Green Party Group –  Caroline Russell AM 
 
For UKIP Group – Peter Whittle AM 
 

Term of Reference 

1.   To examine and report from time to time on –  

 matters of importance to Greater London; and 

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor and the Functional Bodies 

      as they relate to housing matters in London. 
 
2.   To consider housing matters on request from another standing committee and report its 

opinion to that standing committee. 
 
3.   To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when within its 

terms of reference. 
 
4.   To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of persons 

in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the United Kingdom; 
climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 

 

 
  

Page 28



Planning Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
5 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

3 Labour (Labour) Nicky Gavron AM (Deputy Chair) 

2 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Tom Copley AM 

 (Labour) Navin Shah AM 

 (Conservative) Andrew Boff AM 

 (Conservative) Tony Devenish AM (Chair) 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Jennette Arnold OBE AM, Leonie Cooper AM, Unmesh Desai AM, Andrew 
Dismore AM, Len Duvall AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Onkar Sahota AM,  
Fiona Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, 
Shaun Bailey AM, Steve O’Connell AM and Keith Prince AM. 
  
 

Terms of Reference 

1. To examine and report from time to time on –  

 matters of importance to Greater London; and 

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor and the Functional Bodies 

as they relate to spatial development and planning matters in London, in particular the 
Mayor’s Spatial Development Strategy (‘The London Plan’). 
 

2. When invited by the Mayor, to contribute to his consideration of major planning 
applications. 

3. To monitor the Mayor’s exercise of his statutory powers in regard to major planning 
applications referred by the local planning authorities, and to report to the Assembly 
with any proposal for submission to the Mayor for the improvement of the process. 
 

4. To review Local Development Documents submitted to the Mayor by the local planning 
authorities for consistency with his strategies overall, to prepare a response to the Mayor 
for consideration by the Assembly, and to monitor the Mayor’s decisions with regard to 
Local Development Documents. 
 

5. To consider planning matters on request from another standing committee and report its 
opinion to that standing committee. 
 

6. To consider, as necessary, strategic planning matters as set out in The Town and Country 
Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008 and to make recommendations as appropriate. 
(The Assembly has no powers in relation to any individual planning applications.) 
 

7. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when within 
its terms of reference. 
 

Page 29



8. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of 
persons in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the United 
Kingdom; climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 

 

  

Page 30



 

Police and Crime Committee  

 

Total number of seats: 10                              Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

4 Labour (Labour) Unmesh Desai AM (Deputy Chair) 

3 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Andrew Dismore AM 

1 Green Party (Labour) Len Duvall AM  

1 UKIP (Labour) Florence Eshalomi AM 

1 Ungrouped Member (Conservative) Kemi Badenoch AM 

 (Conservative) Steve O’Connell AM (Chair) 

 (Conservative) Keith Prince AM 

 (Green Party) Sian Berry AM 

 (UKIP) Peter Whittle AM 

 (Ungrouped 
Member) 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Jennette Arnold OBE AM,  Leonie Cooper AM, Tom Copley AM, Nicky 
Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney AM, Onkar SahotaAM,  Navin Shah AM, Fiona Twycross AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Shaun Bailey AM, Andrew 
Boff AM and Tony Devenish AM.  
 
For Green Party Group – Caroline Russell AM 
 
For UKIP Group – David Kurten AM 
  

Term of Reference  

1. To review and make a report or recommendation on the draft police and crime plan, or 
draft variation, given to the Assembly by the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime. 

2. To review, put questions to the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime at a public 
meeting, and make a report or recommendation (as necessary) on the Mayor’s Office 
for Policing and Crime’s Annual Report. 

3. To keep under review the exercise of the functions of the Mayor’s Office for Policing 
and Crime. 

4. To investigate, and prepare reports, as necessary, about: 

 any actions and decisions of the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime;  

 any actions and decisions of the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime;  

 any actions and decisions of a member of staff of the Mayor’s Office for Policing 

and Crime;  

 matters relating to the functions of the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime;  

 matters in relation to which the functions of the Mayor’s Office for Policing and 

Crime are exercisable; or  

any other matters which the Assembly considers to be of importance to policing and 
crime reduction in the metropolitan police district. 

Page 31



5. To submit proposals, as necessary, to the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime. 

6. In accordance with section 60A of, and Schedule 4A to, the GLA Act 1999 (as 

amended) to hold a confirmation hearing in respect of the proposed candidate for 

Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and to make recommendations to the Mayor and 

decisions as necessary on the proposed appointment. 

7. To fulfil functions in relation to complaints about conduct matters, in accordance with 

the responsibilities accorded to the Committee by section 31 and schedule 7 of the 

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Elected Local Policing Bodies 

(Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2011. 

 [Note: The Committee functions must be exercised with a view to supporting the 

effective exercise of the functions of the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime.] 

 

 

  

Page 32



Regeneration Committee 
 

Total number of seats: 
5 

                             Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

3 Labour (Labour) Navin Shah AM (Chair) 

2 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Andrew Dismore AM 

 (Labour) Fiona Twycross AM 

 (Conservative) Shaun Bailey AM  

 (Conservative) Tony Devenish AM 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Jennette Arnold OBE AM, Leonie Cooper AM, Tom Copley AM, Unmesh 
Desai AM, Len Duvall AM, Florence Eshalomi AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Joanne McCartney AM, 
Onkar Sahota AM.   
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Kemi Badenoch AM, 
Andrew Boff AM, Steve O’Connell AM and Keith Prince AM. 
 

Terms of Reference  

1. To examine and report from time to time on – 

 matters of importance to Greater London; and 

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor and Functional Bodies  

as they impact on the regeneration of Greater London. 
 

2. To provide lead oversight for the London Assembly of the policies, decisions and actions 
of any Mayoral Development Corporation.  
 

3. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when within 
its terms of reference. 
 

4. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of 
persons in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the United 
Kingdom; climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 
 

  

Page 33



Transport Committee  
 

Total number of seats: 
10 

                            Membership 

Allocation Party Group Name 

4 Labour (Labour) Florence Eshalomi AM 

3 GLA Conservatives (Labour) Tom Copley AM 

1 Green Party  (Labour) Joanne McCartney AM 

1 UKIP (Labour) Navin Shah AM 

1 Ungrouped Member (Conservative) Kemi Badenoch AM 

 (Conservative) Keith Prince AM (Deputy Chair) 

 (Conservative) Steve O’Connell AM 

 (Green Party ) Caroline Russell AM 

 (UKIP) David Kurten AM 

 (Ungrouped 
Member) 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Chair) 

Substitutes:  
 
For Labour Group – Jennette Arnold OBE AM, Leonie Cooper AM, Tom Copley AM, Unmesh Desai 
AM, Andrew Dismore AM, Len Duvall AM, Nicky Gavron AM, Onkar SahotaAM,  Fiona Twycross 
AM. 
 
For GLA Conservatives Group – Tony Arbour AM, Gareth Bacon AM, Shaun Bailey AM, Andrew Boff 
AM and Tony Devenish AM. 
 
For Green Party Group – Sian Berry AM 
 
For UKIP Group – Peter Whittle AM 
 

Terms of Reference 

1. To examine and report from time to time on –  

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor, Transport for London, and the other 
Functional Bodies where appropriate; and 

 matters of importance to Greater London 

as they relate to transport in London. 
 

2. To examine and report to the Assembly from time to time on the Mayor’s Transport Strategy, 
in particular its implementation and revision. 
 

3. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the health of persons in 
Greater London; the achievement of sustainable development in the United Kingdom; 
climate change; and the promotion of opportunity. 
 

4. To oversee the work of the London Transport Users’ Committee (operating as London 
TravelWatch), to receive regular monitoring reports from that Committee and support its 
consultative programme.  To negotiate with the Mayor for the annual budget for the London 
Transport Users’ Committee and to recommend to the Assembly, through the GLA Oversight 
Committee, an annual budget for the London Transport Users’ Committee. 
 

Page 34



5. To discharge the responsibilities and functions of the Assembly in respect of the London 
Transport Users’ Committee under the GLA Act 1999, in particular sections 247 – 252 and 
Schedules 18 and 19. 
 

6. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes when within its 
terms of reference. 
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Last updated:

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

1 November

2 Bank 
Holiday

3 4 5 GLA Elections 6 7 8 1 Housing Ch 2 Plenary Ch 3 Police Ch /          
BMS 2.00pm R5

4 5 6

9 10 11 12 13 Annual 
Meeting 
Ch

14 15 7 8 Economy R5 9 Transport Ch 10 Environment Ch 11 12 13

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 14 15 Planning R5 16 MQT Ch 17 Police Ch / 
Education 2.00pm 
Ch

18 19 20

23 24 Oversight R5/  
CHC 3.30pm Ch

25 MQT Ch /            
CHC 2.30pm Ch

26 Police Ch /          
CHC 2.00pm Ch

27 28 29 21 22 Regeneration 
R5

23 Oversight R5 24 Budget Ch 25 26 27

30 Bank 
Holiday

31 28 29 Health Ch 30

June 1 2 3 4 5 1 Police Ch 2 3 4

6 7 Housing Ch/     
CHC 3.30pm Ch

8 Plenary Ch /           
CHC 2.30pm Ch

9 Police Ch /              
CHC 2.00pm Ch

10 11 12 5 6 Housing Ch 7 Plenary Ch /           
Regeneration 
2.30pm R5

8 Transport Ch / 
Environment 
2.00pm Ch

9 10 11

13 14 Regeneration 
Ch

15 Transport Ch / 
Health 2.00pm Ch

16 Environment 
R5

17 18 19 12 13 Economy R5 / 
Audit 3.30pm R5

14 MQT Ch /         
BMS 2.30pm R4

15 Police Ch /             
Oversight 2.00pm 
R5

16 17 18

20 21 Economy R5 22 MQT Ch 23 Referendum                 24 25 26 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 Christmas 
Day

27 28 Budget Ch 29 Planning Ch / 
Police 2.00pm Ch

30 Oversight R5 26 Bank 
Holiday

27 Bank Holiday 28 29 30 31

July 1 2 3 January 2017 1

4 5 Housing R5 6 Plenary Ch /        
Economy 2.30pm 
R5

7 Eid al Fitr 8 9 10 2 Bank 
Holiday

3 4 Budget R5 5 Budget R5 6 7 8

11 12 Regeneration 
R5 / BMS 3.30pm 
R5

13 Transport Ch / 
Environment 
2.00pm Ch

14 Police Ch /           
Budget 2.00pm Ch

15 16 17 9 10 Budget Ch 11 Transport Ch 12 Police Ch /         
Health 2.00pm R5

13 14 15

18 19 Police Ch /          
Audit 3.30pm R4

20 MQT Ch /              
Oversight 2.30pm 
R5

21 22 23 24 16 17 Economy R5 18 MQT Ch 19 Environment Ch 
/ Regeneration 
2.00pm R5

20 21 22

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 Housing R5 25 Plenary (Draft 
Budget) Ch

26 Police Ch 27 28 29

30 31 Oversight R5

August
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 February
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 1 Planning Ch 2 Transport Ch 3 4 5

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 6 7 Regeneration 
Ch

8 Plenary Ch 9 Police Ch /           
Education 2.00pm 
Ch

10 11 12

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

29 Bank 
Holiday

30 31 20 MQT 
(Final 
Budget) 
Ch

21 Economy R5 22 Environment 
Ch

23 Police Ch /               
Oversight 2.00pm 
R5

24 25 26

27 28 Housing R5

September 1 2 3 4 March 1 Regeneration 
Ch

2 Transport Ch 3 4 5

5 6 Housing Ch 7 Plenary Ch/ 8 Police Ch / 9 10 11 6 7 Budget R5 8 Plenary Ch 9 Police Ch 10 11 12
Regeneration 
3.30pm Ch

Economy 2.30pm 
R5

Transport 2.00pm 
Ch

12 13 Eid al Adha 14 MQT Ch / 15 Environment 16 17 18 13 14 Planning R5 15 Health Ch 16 Environment Ch 17 18 19
Education 2.30pm 
R5

Ch / Planning 
2.00pm Ch

19 20 21 22 Police Ch / 23 24 25 20 21 Economy R5 22 MQT Ch 23 Police Ch / 24 25 26
Oversight 2.00pm 
R5

BMS 2.00pm R5

26 27 28 29 Budget Ch 30 27 28 Audit R5 29 Housing Ch 30 Oversight R5 31

October 1 2 April 1 2

3 Rosh 4 Rosh Hashanah 5 6 Police Ch / 7 8 9 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Hashanah Housing 2.00pm 

R5
10 11 Transport Ch 

/ Economy 
3.30pm R5

12 Yom Kippur 13 Environment 
Ch/ Regeneration 
2.00pm Ch

14 15 16 10 11 12 13 14 Good 
Friday

15 16 Easter 
Sunday

17 18 Budget R5 
/Audit 3.30pm 
R5

19 MQT Ch /             
Health 2.30pm R4

20 Police Ch /          
Oversight 2.00pm 
Ch

21 22 23 17 Easter 
Monday

18 Passover 19 Health Ch 20 Planning Ch 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30      
Diwali

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

Key to Assembly meetings and committees: 
Key: Weekends and 

bank holidays
School holidays 

Labour Party Pre-election period for Education: Education Panel
Conservative Party 5 May 2016 GLA elections Environment: Environment Committee
Liberal Democrats and Pre-Referendum Health: Health Committee
Green Party Period Housing: Housing Committee
UKIP MQT: Assembly Mayor's Question Time

Oversight: GLA Oversight Committee
Planning: Planning Committee
Plenary: Assembly Plenary
Police: Police and Crime Committee
Regeneration: Regeneration Committee
Transport: Transport Committee

LFEPA  dates are those scheduled by the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 
for their Full Authority meetings.

Budget: Budget and Performance Committee
CHC: Confirmation Hearings Committee (provisional slots if required)                                                                   
Economy: Economy Committee

 All meetings start at 10.00am unless stated otherwise.

Dates for school holidays in the majority 
of London boroughs; some schools may 
vary. 

Certain major religious 
holidays are shown in red.
Ch for Chamber or 
committee room number 
shown for each meeting

Audit: Audit Panel
BMS: Budget Monitoring Sub-committee            

   Dates for 2016 Party Conference 
   season as announced to date.

13 May 2016

May 2016

       Committee Timetable 2016/17

December

Appendix 2

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



                                   
 

Assembly Plenary, 8 June 2016 

 

PRIORITY ORDER PAPER 

 

Report No:   4 

Subject:   Questions and Answer Session – Transport for London 

Report of:   Executive Director of Secretariat 

 

 

TfL - past and future 
Question No: 2016/1789 
Florence Eshalomi  
Given the transport legacy left for you by your predecessor, and the significant cuts in 
government grant faced by TfL, are you still confident that TfL will be able to deliver your 
manifesto? 

Mayor's Transport Manifesto 
Question No: 2016/1835 
Keith Prince  
How much of the Mayor's Transport Manifesto is likely to actually be achieved over the next 4 
years? 

Reducing traffic in London 
Question No: 2016/1836 
Caroline Russell  
Will you make traffic reduction an explicit goal of your Transport Strategy? 

Black Cab Trade 
Question No: 2016/1847 
David Kurten  
What are you going to do to protect the black cab trade in London, particularly as many black 
cab drivers fear they will incur large costs and be forced out of business if the ULEZ is 
implemented? 

Questions not asked during Plenary will be given a written response by 
Monday 13 June 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



Questions for Written Answer 
 
 

Garden Bridge - changes to the Business Plan 
Question No: 2016/1785 
Caroline Pidgeon  
Following the Mayoral announcement on the 18 May 2016 relating to the Garden Bridge, 
please state the specific changes to the Business Plan for the Garden Bridge which have been 
formally agreed by the Garden Bridge Trust in relation to the number of days the bridge will be 
shut to the public and the hours of closure on these days. 

Bypass bus stops - vulnerable pedestrians 
Question No: 2016/1786 
Caroline Pidgeon  
Are you satisfied with the level of consultation TfL is undertaking with pensioner groups and 
disabled people over the creation of cycle routes that bypass bus stops? Will you consider a 
moratorium on them being created until safety concerns raised by many bus users and 
pedestrians are adequately addressed? 

Workplace Parking Levy 
Question No: 2016/1787 
Caroline Pidgeon  
Can you confirm whether the forthcoming consultation on measures to tackle air pollution in 
London will consider the feasibility of introducing a workplace parking levy in central London in 
order to reduce congestion and improve air quality? 

Review of Congestion Charging 
Question No: 2016/1788 
Caroline Pidgeon  
In addition to extending the Ultra-Low Emission Zone (ULEZ) to the North Circular Road and 
the South Circular Road will you commit to review the effectiveness of the current congestion 
charging scheme with a view to improving both air quality and congestion in central London? 

HS2 
Question No: 2016/1790 
Andrew Dismore  
What assistance and  support could you offer residents  and businesses in Camden , who will be 
adversely affected by HS2 works, in obtaining fair compensation and adequate mitigation of 
the impact? 

Page 40



HS2 3 
Question No: 2016/1791 
Andrew Dismore  
Will you make representations to  the House of Lords, over the 'locus' objections  taken by 
HS2, which if upheld will prevent the House of Lords hearing the petitions of residents' groups, 
elected representatives (including myself and ward councillors) and  a number of residents, 
when the Lords Committee considers the HS2 Bill? 

HS2 4 
Question No: 2016/1792 
Andrew Dismore  
Will you support local residents and their representatives in their efforts to get HS2 to engage  
with them meaningfully over the impact HS2 will have in  Camden? 

Discretionary passes for people with disabilities in Barnet 
Question No: 2016/1793 
Andrew Dismore  
Will you make representations to Barnet Council on the way that it has administered 
reassessment of non-discretionary (statutory) passes and discretionary passes for people with 
disabilities, including physical, learning and mental health disability after the Council 
privatised   the process to Capita?  

Tube shuttle service to Mill Hill East from Finchley Central 
Question No: 2016/1794 
Andrew Dismore  
A recurrent problem for the tube shuttle service to Mill Hill East is drivers not waiting for the 
incoming connecting train at Finchley Central. By way of example, a constituent was at Finchley 
Central around 13.34 hours on Tuesday 17th May.  As the train came in to Finchley Central 
going north to High Barnet, the shuttle service to Mill Hill East closed its doors and drove off 
leaving passengers a 15 minute wait for the next shuttle. Will you get a grip on this problem? 

382 bus at Mill Hill East 
Question No: 2016/1795 
Andrew Dismore  
The 382 bus at Mill Hill East is not co-ordinated with the times of the Tube shuttle, going at 
the same time in the same direction. If it was staggered to the mid-point of the 15 minute tube 
schedule, it would mean no-one would have to wait more than 7.5 minutes for a tube or bus 
heading south.  Can this be organised please? 

The 'Garden Bridge' 
Question No: 2016/1796 
Andrew Dismore  
Will you ensure that TfL funds are not used to subsidise the 'Garden bridge'? 

Page 41



Boris Buses 
Question No: 2016/1797 
Andrew Dismore  
Will you ensure that no more of the uncomfortable and polluting so called 'Boris Buses' are 
purchased? 

Elephant & Castle 
Question No: 2016/1798 
Florence Eshalomi  
Many of my residents are being seriously inconvenienced by the issues surrounding the 
changes being made at Elephant & Castle. Will you commit to urgently reviewing the scheme to 
ensure that users of the roundabout do not suffer another summer of traffic jams? 

Rotherhithe-Canary Wharf cycle and pedestrian bridge 
Question No: 2016/1799 
Florence Eshalomi  
My residents are delighted that you are backing the Rotherhithe-Canary Wharf cycle and 
pedestrian bridge. Can you update us on when you would like the bridge to open? 

Crossrail 2 
Question No: 2016/1800 
Florence Eshalomi  
Residents in Streatham are keen for Crossrail 2 to come through the area. Do you have any 
plans to review the route to ensure it is right for London? 

Tooley Street 
Question No: 2016/1801 
Florence Eshalomi  
Walking along Tooley street I'm sure you will agree that the temporary road closure is a major 
inconvenience to local residents and the many commuters using London Bridge on a daily basis. 
Although the closure was organised by Network Rail, as a busy TfL route, could you update us 
on when the road will be reopened again? ' 

Ticket Office Closures 
Question No: 2016/1802 
Florence Eshalomi  
When will you begin to examine the impact of ticket office closures on London Underground? 

Page 42



The Taxi & PHV Markets (1) 
Question No: 2016/1803 
Florence Eshalomi  
What do you think is unfair about the current markets for licensed taxi drivers and for private 
hire drivers in London? What changes would you make to ensure they are fairer? 

Taxi Privileges (2) 
Question No: 2016/1804 
Florence Eshalomi  
Please list what special privileges licensed London taxi drivers currently enjoy? 

Driver Safety Standards (3) 
Question No: 2016/1805 
Florence Eshalomi  
You have said you would "ensure that driver safety standards are rigorously enforced across the 
black cab and private hire industries". Can you explain why you believe they are not being 
rigorously enforced at the moment? 

Using Bus Lanes & Plying for Hire 
Question No: 2016/1806 
Florence Eshalomi  
Do you believe the exclusive right of licensed black taxi drivers to use bus lanes and ply for hire 
is currently under threat? If so how is it under threat? 

TfL And The Utility Companies (1) 
Question No: 2016/1807 
Florence Eshalomi  
How does TfL currently work with utility companies to coordinate maintenance and upgrading 
of infrastructure, in order to ensure that the same sections of road are not repeatedly subjected 
to works? 

TfL And The Utility Companies (2) 
Question No: 2016/1808 
Florence Eshalomi  
How will you change the relationship between TfL and the utility companies in order to ensure 
that the same sections of road are not repeatedly subjected to works? 

River Crossings (1) 
Question No: 2016/1809 
Florence Eshalomi  
Do you support the previous Mayor's vision for 13 new river crossings for London he outlined 
in December 2015? 

Page 43



River Crossings (2) 
Question No: 2016/1810 
Florence Eshalomi  
When will your joined-up review of river crossings and improved public transport connections 
east of Tower Bridge report? 

Pedicabs 
Question No: 2016/1811 
Florence Eshalomi  
Following their commitment in January 2016, has the Government confirmed to you when they 
will introduce legislation to enable TfL to regulate pedicabs? 

HGV Traffic (1) 
Question No: 2016/1812 
Florence Eshalomi  
TfL anticipates Light Vans traffic increasing by 22% between 2011 and 2031, while Goods 
Vehicles (HGV) traffic will remain static. Do you share TfL's view? 

HGV Traffic (2) 
Question No: 2016/1813 
Florence Eshalomi  
According to the Department for Transport Road traffic (vehicle miles) by Large Goods Vehicles 
(HGVs) was 0.6 in 1993 and is 0.6 in 2014. What do you hope this figure will be in 2020? 

Car Clubs 
Question No: 2016/1814 
Florence Eshalomi  
What support do you plan to offer car clubs? 

Congestion Charge (1) 
Question No: 2016/1815 
Florence Eshalomi  
Do you plan to maintain the current congestion charge discounts, as well as the qualification 
criteria, at their current levels? 

Congestion Charge (2) 
Question No: 2016/1816 
Florence Eshalomi  
Do you plan to maintain the congestion charge boundary at its current extent? 

Page 44



Local Implementation Plans 
Question No: 2016/1817 
Florence Eshalomi  
Do you plan to allocate resources to councils to spend through their Local Implementation 
Plans at the current level? 

River Freight (1) 
Question No: 2016/1818 
Florence Eshalomi  
Please provide details for the level of freight transport on the Thames from 2008 onwards. 

River Freight (2) 
Question No: 2016/1819 
Florence Eshalomi  
The 2013 River Action Plan says, "Freight transport on the Thames within London is expected 
to increase substantially over the next 10 years or so". Please provide estimates on the level of 
freight transport on the Thames up to 2023. 

River Passengers 
Question No: 2016/1820 
Florence Eshalomi  
The previous Mayor planned to double the number of people using river services from six 
million in 2013 to 12million by 2020. Do you support the 12 million figure or do you plan to 
increase it even further? 

Business & TfL 
Question No: 2016/1821 
Florence Eshalomi  
Please explain how you intend to involve business in decision making on key issues of transport 
infrastructure? How will this change the current avenues of involvement? 

Sexual Assaults On The Transport Network (1) 
Question No: 2016/1822 
Florence Eshalomi  
How many extra officers will you deploy at key times in order to clamp down on sexual assaults 
on the transport network? Please define what you mean by key times. 

Sexual Assaults On The Transport Network (2) 
Question No: 2016/1823 
Florence Eshalomi  
How much of the increase in sexual assaults on the transport network is due to increased 
reporting and how much is due to more crimes being committed? 

Page 45



Transport Engagement 
Question No: 2016/1824 
Florence Eshalomi  
What is the historic level of engagement between the Mayor's Office and people with 
disabilities on transport related matters. How will you seek to increase the level of 
engagement? 

Older & Disabled Passengers and TfL (1) 
Question No: 2016/1825 
Florence Eshalomi  
How does TfL currently ensure the needs of disabled and older passengers are understood by 
London's transport workers? What will you do to increase the level of understanding? 

Older & Disabled Passengers and TfL (2) 
Question No: 2016/1826 
Florence Eshalomi  
Do you have any plans to incentivise bus companies through stricter penalties to enforce 
wheelchair priority in the wheelchair bay, pull up to the stop; pull into the kerb and give people 
enough time to sit down? 

Door-to-Door Services (1) 
Question No: 2016/1827 
Florence Eshalomi  
What steps do you plan to take to improve the taxicard and Dial-a-Ride services? 

Door-to-Door Services (2) 
Question No: 2016/1828 
Florence Eshalomi  
Do you plan to change Door-to-Door services to allow users to travel for more than 5 miles? 

TfL & the London Living Wage (1) 
Question No: 2016/1829 
Florence Eshalomi  
Can you confirm that TfL currently pays all its employees the London Living Wage or above? 

TfL & the London Living Wage (2) 
Question No: 2016/1830 
Florence Eshalomi  
Can you confirm that TfL currently requires its contractors to pay the London Living Wage to 
their employees and subcontractors through a clause in the TfL contract with its contractors? 

Page 46



Gender Pay Audit at TfL (1) 
Question No: 2016/1831 
Florence Eshalomi  
In 2012 TfL conducted an equal pay audit and in 2015 they scoped a new audit. Can you 
confirm when the new gender pay audit will take place and when the results will be published? 

Gender Pay Audit at TfL (2) 
Question No: 2016/1832 
Florence Eshalomi  
Will TfL's contractors be involved in the new audit? 

Bus Drivers Pay (1) 
Question No: 2016/1833 
Florence Eshalomi  
How do you plan to establish a unified, fair pay structure across London for bus drivers? 

Bus Drivers Pay (2) 
Question No: 2016/1834 
Florence Eshalomi  
What are the expected costs and benefits to TfL of establishing a unified, fair pay structure 
across London for bus drivers? 

Success of East-West Cycle Superhighway 
Question No: 2016/1837 
Caroline Russell  
TfL reported at the recent Cycle City, Active City conference that 1,200 people per hour have 
been using this superhighway in the morning peak. How does this compare to the demand for 
this route as modelled, prior to its construction? 

A40 Westway cycle superhighway 
Question No: 2016/1838 
Caroline Russell  
West London cyclists are looking forward to using this route to ride all the way from North 
Acton to the Tower of London. Please outline the timetable for constructing this route. 

Upgrades to cycle superhighways 
Question No: 2016/1839 
Caroline Russell  
Cycle superhighways 3, 7 and 8 are due to be upgraded during 2016. Please outline the 
timetable for each route. 

Page 47



Diamond Jubilee Bridge 
Question No: 2016/1840 
Caroline Russell  
TfL officers are now working with Wandsworth Council to deliver the Diamond Jubilee 
pedestrian and cycle bridge. Can you confirm your ongoing commitment to this vital piece of 
local infrastructure and assure residents that all that can be done with regard to funding 
assistance and support will be done? 

London Transport Health Action Plan 
Question No: 2016/1841 
Caroline Russell  
How will you ensure that lessons from existing cycling and walking schemes are fully 
incorporated into the forthcoming revision of this plan? 

Night tube launch 
Question No: 2016/1842 
Caroline Russell  
Ahead of the launch of the night tube on two lines in August, are you satisfied that residents' 
concerns about noise have been fully addressed? 

Outer London Cycling Potential Analysis 
Question No: 2016/1843 
Caroline Russell  
In response to 2015/3257 your predecessor stated that TfL would this year publish new 
analysis of cycling potential in outer London. Please confirm whether this report will still be 
published and offer a timescale. 

Intelligent Speed Adaptation 
Question No: 2016/1844 
Caroline Russell  
Given Intelligent Speed Adaptation will be standard on all buses from 2017, will you  extend it 
to all vehicles over which you have a duty of care such as taxi and private hire vehicles and any 
vehicles contracted to work for the GLA Group, especially  construction vehicles? 

New types of housing 
Question No: 2016/1845 
Sian Berry  
In his manifesto, the Mayor wrote that "it is vital that we look at developing new forms of 
housing to meet the future needs of the capital, such as community land trusts, co-housing, 
and housing which allows older Londoners to downsize." Will you pilot some of these models 
on surplus TfL land? 

Page 48



Redeveloping TfL land 
Question No: 2016/1846 
Sian Berry  
Where surplus TfL land is currently occupied by businesses and residents likely to be affected 
by redevelopment plans, will you ensure that TfL carries out a full and transparent 
consultation? 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 
 

 

Subject: Petitions 

Report to: London Assembly (Plenary)  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 8 June 2016 

 
This report will be considered in public  
 
 
 
1.  Summary 
 

1.1 This report sets out details of petitions to be presented at this meeting by Assembly Members. 

 

 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Assembly receives and notes the petitions listed at section 4 of this report and 

decides whether to refer the petitions, and if so where to, and seeks a response to the 

points raised. 

 

 

3. Background 
 

3.1 Standing Orders 3.20 to 3.21 make provision for the presentation of petitions by an 

Assembly Member at an ordinary meeting of the Assembly. 

 

A petition to be presented must: 

 

(a) Be addressed to the Mayor, the Assembly, a Functional Body (as the case may be); 

 

(b) Clearly indicate the name, address and contact telephone number of the person organising the 

petition, or where the petition was organised on the internet, its data controller; 

 

(c) Be presented in the form of printed sheets, each of which includes the “prayer” of the petition 

(the “prayer” is the formal request or other subject matter of the petition) or, if the petition was 

organised on the internet, clearly demonstrate that internet users who subscribed to the petition 

knew what the prayer was;  

 

(d) Include each petitioner’s name (which may be printed or be in the form of a signature, provided 

that the signature is legible) and address (sufficient that the person and their address can be 

identified) or, where the petition was organised on the internet, their names and email addresses; 

 

(e) Indicate the total number of manual or electronic signatories to the petition. 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5



        

(f) Young people aged 17 or under signing a petition may give their address as that of the school, or 

other recognised youth group or similar organisation that they attend (with details of their class 

name where appropriate), provided that the lead petitioner is a teacher at or leader of that school or 

youth group or similar organisation. 

 

(g) Indicate the total number of manual or electronic signatories to the petition; and 

 

(h) Refer to matters within the responsibilities of the Mayor, the London Assembly or the functional 

bodies, or to matters of importance to Londoners, including those who visit, live or work in Greater 

London. 

 

3.2 Notice of the intention to present a petition at an Assembly meeting and a copy of the petition must 

be given to the Executive Director of the Secretariat by no later than 12 noon six clear working days 

before that meeting. 

 

3.3 Under Standing Orders the Member presenting the petition will read out the prayer of the petition 

(but not the signatories). The Assembly will not debate the petition. If the Assembly agrees without 

debate, the petition will be forwarded to the Mayor, Functional Body, relevant committee or other 

organisation with a request for a response to the points made by the petitioner.  The response 

received will be reported to the Assembly for information and forwarded to the petition’s organiser.  

The prayer of the petition and the response received will be published in the appropriate Assembly 

Minutes. 

 

 

4. Petitions to be presented 
 

4.1 Notice of the following petitions has been received: 

 

4.2 A petition, received by Len Duvall AM, is to be presented to the London Assembly, in accordance 

with Standing Orders 3.20 to 3.21, saying: 

 

“We, the undersigned residents of Chudleigh Road, petition Transport for London to 

retain the Hail and Ride service on the 284 route between Ladywell Road and Arthurdon 

Road and to refrain from installing further fixed stops along this section of the route 

along Chudleigh Road. 

 

Parking is a major problem along this section of Chudleigh Road, even beyond the 

Controlled Parking Zone. The loss of up to four parking spaces at each bus stop is not 

justified and will only serve to increase parking problems for residents.” 

 

The petition has 68 signatories.   

 

The contact person for this petition is Robert Smith, 47 Chudleigh Road, London. 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



        

4.3 A petition, received by Steve O’Connell AM, is to be presented to the London Assembly, in 

accordance with Standing Orders 3.20 to 3.21, saying: 

 

“Mr Khan, you made an explicit pledge in your recent Election Manifesto of “Making 

renting more affordable and protecting the Green Belt”. We are asking you to honour this 

pledge by supporting our campaign to save the Wellfield Grazing Green Belt in Sutton. 

  

As part of the 2031 Local Plan, the London Borough of Sutton is reviewing a proposal to 

re-define the Green Belt as a step towards developing the Wellfield Grazing land for 

residential family housing, even though there are currently around 150 brownfield sites in 

Sutton which are prime sites for housing developments instead.  

  

The Council’s proposal to de-designate the Green Belt status generated over 400 strong 

objections from local residents and over 2300 signatures so far to a petition from riders, 

parents, carers, volunteers and supporters of The Diamond Centre for Disabled Riders. 

  

This land forms London’s southernmost edge of the Green Belt, and is protected by a 

covenant which permits only grazing and fencing. Erosion of Green Belt is a permanent 

and irrevocable loss for all future generations. 

  

The Wellfield Grazing land is used on a daily basis as paddocks for the 30 horses owned 

by The Diamond Centre for Disabled Riders, a self-funded charity established over 40 

years ago and a member of the Riding for Disabled Association (RDA). The RDA President, 

Her Royal Highness, The Princess Royal, is a great supporter of RDA, and an 

enthusiastic advocate of the therapeutic benefits of horse riding for people with physical 

disability and learning difficulties. The Princess Royal, then Princess Anne opened the 

Centre in 1974 and has made several visits to Diamond since and has always taken a great 

interest in Centre. The loss of the 5 acres of Wellfield Grazing is a serious concern to 

Diamond as it would seriously reduce the number of horses that could be kept which 

obviously would have a huge impact on the riding activities for children and adults with 

disabilities. 

  

The Diamond Centre Trustees and its supporters would appreciate Mr Khan’s support 

in rejecting Sutton Council's ill-conceived proposal and uphold their agreement to allow 

the Centre to continue using this land for grazing the horses, which provide valuable 

therapeutic riding for many people with disability and learning difficulties. 

  

The loss of this grazing land would have a significant and adverse effect on the excellent 

and unique work of the Centre and would have serious irreversible impact on the local 

community and especially the disabled riders and their families who rely on the Diamond 

Centre to improve the quality of their lives.  

  

In summary, we sincerely hope Mr Khan will lend his voice to our campaign by notifying 

Sutton Council of his heartfelt objection to their proposal, and requesting its withdrawal 

as it directly contradicts his election pledge.” 

 

The petition has 2,250 signatories.   

 

Page 53



        

The contact person for this petition is Steve Axon, The Diamond Centre For Disabled Riders, 

Woodmansterne Road, Carshalton SM5 4DT. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 By virtue of sections 59, 34 and 53 of the GLA Act 1999 (as amended), the Assembly has the power 

to do what is recommended in this report.  

 

5.2 Under Standing Order 3.20 the petitions presented to the Assembly, together with the pages 

containing the names and addresses of the signatories to the petition, are documents to which the 

access to information rules from sections 100A - H and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 

1972 apply. 

 

5.3 Any applications from Members to see the names and addresses of the signatories to the petition 

will be considered by the Executive Director of the Secretariat on a case by case basis and in 

accordance with the relevant provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Data Protection 

Act 1988. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications directly arising from this report. 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: None. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

List of Background Papers: None. 

 

Contact Officer: John Barry, Principal Committee Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 

Email: John.barry@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 54



                                                                      

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 
 

 

Subject: Motions 
Report to: London Assembly (Plenary)  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 8 June 2016 

 
This report will be considered in public  
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 The Assembly is asked to consider the motions set out which have been submitted by Assembly 

Members. 

 

 

2. Recommendation  
 

2.1 That the Assembly considers the motions submitted by Assembly Members as set out 

below. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 

3.1 The following motion has been proposed in the name of Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM and will be 

seconded by Tom Copley AM: 

 
“This Assembly notes that London’s property market continues to act as a magnet for overseas 
investment, which is believed to be contributing to the capital’s housing crisis in terms of both 
affordability and availability. This is exemplified by a recent Guardian investigation, which revealed 
that almost two-thirds of homes in the Tower, a 50-storey residential development in Vauxhall, are 
in foreign ownership, many of which are believed to be empty and unoccupied.1 One quarter of 
these are also held through opaque offshore companies, raising serious questions about where the 
money for the purchase of these properties has come from.1 

 
This Assembly notes the Mayor of London’s recent statement that “too many [homes] are sold off-
plan to overseas investors, only to sit empty”,2 with a growing number of investors using homes in 
the capital simply as “gold bricks for investment”.3 
 
This Assembly shares the concerns expressed by the Mayor of London, but recognises that the true 
extent, nature, and impact of foreign investment in London’s housing market is not yet fully 
understood.  
 

                                                 
1 Guardian, 24 May 2016, ‘The London skyscraper that is a stark symbol of the housing crisis’. 
2 Sadiq Khan, ‘A Manifesto for all Londoners’, page 9. 
3 Mayor of London speaking at Mayor’s question Time on 25 May 2016. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



        

This Assembly believes the Mayor has a duty to fully investigate and report upon overseas 
investment in London’s housing market as he seeks to update the capital’s housing policies, to 
ensure that homes remain affordable for local people to buy and rent.  
 
This Assembly therefore calls on the Mayor to examine the extent to which properties owned by 
overseas investors are kept empty or unused; and to commission research into the effects of 
overseas investment on the price, affordability and supply of homes across London as a matter of 
urgency.”  
     

3.2 The following motion has been proposed in the name of Sian Berry AM and will be seconded by 

Leonie Cooper AM: 

 
“This Assembly welcomes the Mayor’s previously stated support for refugees and in particular his 
support for the UK offering sanctuary to more unaccompanied children. With its diverse population 
and experienced public services, London is culturally well-placed to accept refugees. 
  
This Assembly notes that the Government is currently consulting local authorities on this issue, and 
that the number of children accepted and the timeline for these acceptances will depend in part on 
the authorities’ responses. 
  
The London Assembly recognises that London boroughs have been subjected to amongst the 
deepest funding cuts imposed by the current Government and its predecessor. This Assembly 
believes that London local government’s desire to offer assistance to refugees must be met with an 
equally-strong commitment by central government to provide the funding that will enable local 
authorities to assist these most vulnerable of people. 
  

This Assembly therefore calls on the Mayor to set out his position on refugees and what he will do 
to work with all local authorities in London to ensure that they can continue to provide shelter to 

those fleeing their country of origin, in order to escape war, persecution, or natural disaster” 

  

3.3 The following motion has been proposed in the name of Dr Onkar Sahota AM and will be 
seconded by Jennette Arnold OBE AM: 

 
“This Assembly notes the Government’s plan to end NHS bursaries for training nurses, midwives and 
allied health professionals from September 20174. The bursaries will be replaced with student loans5. 
 
This Assembly also notes there is a nurse vacancy rate of 17% in London compared with 10% in 
England6. The Royal College of Nursing (RCN) has calculated that 10,000 nurse vacancies remain 
unfilled in the capital7. 
  
Student nurses and midwives are unlike other students. Often they are ‘mature students’ with 
dependents and they all spend 50% of their time in clinical placements as part of their qualification. 
This reduces their ability to access paid employment while in training.    
 
The Chancellor’s claim that replacing bursaries with interest-bearing loans will free-up 10,000 new 
places for nurses is based on the demand for places under the current system8. The current applicant 
to place ratio is an argument in favour of the government financing more nursing bursaries, not an 
argument for the introduction of loans.  
 

                                                 
4 Department of Health, NHS Bursary Reform, 7 April 2016 
5 Ibid. 
6 Royal College of Nursing, Safe Staffing Review 2015, 6 January 2016 
7 Ibid 
8 Matthew Jenkin, Will scrapping nurse bursaries help or worsen NHS staffing crisis?, Guardian, 07.12.15 

Page 56



        

Research has not been conducted into how the introduction of fees will impact upon the application 
rate for nursing places. The Government does not know if the introduction of fees will exacerbate 
the NHS nursing shortage. There is a high risk that a loan system will be an obstacle to people from 
poorer backgrounds and those changing careers later in life. Midwifery, in particular, attracts large 
number of mature students already saddled with debt from a first degree9. 
 
It is reasonable to assume that London will be heavily impacted by the decision to end the bursary 
system, due to the higher cost of living in capital. This was illustrated by a recent survey, which 
found four in ten nurses employed in the London will leave by 2021 because of the cost of 
housing10. Further, given that housing costs vary considerably across London, the proposed loan 
system is likely to impact upon the capital unevenly, with some hospital trusts struggling more than 
others to recruit these most essential of front-line NHS employees. As a consequence, the removal 
of NHS bursaries may have a profound impact on the already startlingly high level of health 
inequalities in the capital and there will therefore be a negative impact on access to healthcare in 
London11.  
 
This Assembly therefore believes recruitment and retention of nurses, midwives and allied health 
professionals in London will be made harder by the scrapping of student nurse bursaries.  
 
This Assembly believes that the decision to scrap bursaries is driven by a desire to save money in the 
short-term and that, over the long-term, costs will be higher for the NHS both financially and in 
terms of UK trained workforce working in the NHS12. 
  
Given the Mayor’s duties in respect of health inequalities in the capital, this Assembly calls upon the 
Mayor, Chair of the London Assembly and Chair of the Health Committee to write jointly to the 
Secretary of State calling on the Government to put an immediate halt to the proposals to end NHS 
bursaries, until a long term and viable option has been identified which promotes the value of 
graduate and university degree educated health professions. It should also call on the Government 
to consult properly and openly on how to improve the support available to nursing students, 
recognising the unique aspects of nursing degrees, and to increase the number of nurses, midwives, 
and allied health professionals in London’s NHS.” 

 
 

 

List of appendices to this report: None. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None. 

 

Contact Officer: John Barry, Principal Committee Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 

Email: john.barry@london.gov.uk 

 

                                                 
9 Ibid 
10 Royal Collage of Nursing, 40% of London Nurses to leave over housing costs, 28 April 2016 
11 Public Health England, Health inequalities in London 
12 The long term cost to the NHS will be higher because (1) cost of agency nurses filling gaps caused by poor recruiting and early 
retirement and emigration of a low morale workforce. 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1
	Minutes -Appendix 2
	Timetable


	4 Question and Answer Session - Transport for London
	5 Petitions
	6 Motions

